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CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 36th Annual General Meeting of Capital Finvest Limited will be held on Wednesday, 30th Day
of September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at 1002, Arunachal, 19 Barakhamba Road, New
Delhi - 110 001, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1

To consider and adopt the Audited financial statement of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and
the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Toappointadirectorin place of Shri Lalit Kumar (DIN 00059732), whoretires by rotation and, being eligible offers himself
forre-appointment.

To ratify appointment of M/s SRDP & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 509930C) as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of thisAnnual General Meeting to the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as shall be decided by the Board of Directors or any
Committee thereof.

SPECIALBUSINESS
4.

Toreappoint Smt. Neeta Goel (DIN 07158388) as an Independent (Non-Executive) Director and in this regard to consider
and, ifthoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

"RESOLVED THAT pursuantto Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013
"(the Act)" read with the companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the other applicable
Rules made there-under(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactmentthereof for the time being inforce) read
with Schedule IV to the CompaniesAct, 2013, Smt Neeta Goel (DIN: 07158388) whose term of office expires at the
ensuing 36th Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a
memberunder Section 160 of the CompaniesAct, 2013, proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be andis
hereby reappointed with effect from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 40th Annual
General Meeting as an Independent (Non Executive) Director of the Company, notliable to retire by rotation."

Toreappoint Shri Rattan Singhania (DIN 00147685) as whole time Director and in this regard to consider and, if thought
fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

"RESOLVED THAT pursuantto the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and any other applicable provisions, ifany, of
the CompaniesAct, 2013, the Companies (Appointmentand Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 read
with Schedule V of the said Act and Article 95 and 127 of the Articles of Association of the Company (including any
statutory modifications and re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and as per the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration committee and subject to the consent of the members of the company by way of a Special
Resolution atthe forthcoming Annual General Meeting, ShriRattan Singhania (DIN: 00147685) be andis hereby re-
appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a further period of three years with effect from 1st April 2021
to31stMarch 2024, onthe terms asunder :

(@) SALARY: UptoamaximumofRs.2,00,000/- permonthincluding dearness allowance and all other allowances
with authority to the Board to fix the salary within the above maximum amount fromtime totime. Initially with effect
from 1st April 2020 salary to be Rs. 1,30,000 (Rupees One Lakh Thirty Thousand) and thereafter annual or
periodicincrements to be decided by the Board within the above limit.

(b) PERQUSITES:

i) The company shall provide the Whole Time Director car with driver for official use as well as for self use or
where the car is owned by him then incur/reimburse the expenditure incurred by him, the value of this
perquisite to be determined as per Income Tax Rules.

ii) Reimbursement of expenditure actually incurred by him on his medical treatment or the treatment of any
member of his family to the extent exempt from tax under the Income TaxAct, 1961.
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i) Reimbursement of medical Insurance Premium paid by him on his health or on the health of any member of
his family underany scheme approved u/s 80 D ofthe Income TaxAct, 1961.

iv)  Gratuity payable atarate notexceeding halfamonth's salary foreach completed year of service provided
and it shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration in any financial year if the
Company has no profit orits profits are inadequate in that financial year.

v)  Thecompany will provide one telephone and one internet connection at his residence for the business
purposes of the company or pay the expenses for the telephone and one internet connection presently
installed at his residence. He shallhowever reimburse the company for personal long distance telephone
calls. The company would reimburse or pay expenses of one mobile phone.

He shallnotbe entitled to any sitting fees for any Board / committee meeting.

The company would reimburse or pay all expensesincurred inthe performance of his duties for the purposes of the
Company'sbusiness.

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, either party shall be entitled to determine his appointment by giving three
months' notice inwriting inthat behalfto the other party and on the expiry of the period of such notice, his appointment
shallstand terminated. The company shallalso be entitled to terminate his appointmenton giving himthree month's salary
as specified above.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT inthe eventof any loss orinadequacy of profits in any financial year during histenure, the
Company shall pay Shri Rattan Singhania, the remuneration by way of salary and perquisites or any other allowances
as specified above andin accordance with the limits specified under the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactments thereof, for the time being in force) or such other limits as may be prescribed by the
Governmentfromtimetotimeinthisregard, as minimum remuneration.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT ShriArun Kumar Garg - Director ofthe Company or Ms. Prachi Goel - Company Secretary
of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised tofile the necessary returns with the Registrar of Companies,
NCT of Delhi & Haryana and to do all such acts, deeds and things and to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper
orexpedientto give effecttothisresolution."

By order of the Board of Directors
For CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

Dated: : 03-09-2020 RATTAN SINGHANIA
Place : New Delhi Whole Time Director

DIN No. 00147685

Notes:
1.

AMEMBERENTITLED TOATTENDANDVOTEAT THEMEETINGISENTITLED TOAPPOINT APROXYTOATTEND
ANDVOTEONPOLL ONHISBEHALF.APROXYNEEDNOTBE AMEMBER OF THECOMPANY.APROXY,INORDER
TOBEEFFECTIVE,MUSTBERECEIVED AT THEREGISTERED OFFICE OF THECOMPANY NOTLESS THAN 48
HOURSBEFORE THECOMMENCEMENT OF THEMEETING.ABLANKPROXY FORMISENCLOSED.

APERSONCANACTASAPROXY ONBEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY ANDHOLDING INTHE
AGGREGATENOTMORETHANTENPERCENT OF THETOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THECOMPANY CARRING
VOTINGRIGHTS.AMEMBER HOLDING MORE THANTEN PERCENT OF THET OTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY CARRYINGVOTINGRIGHTSMAYAPPOINT ASINGLEPERSONASPROXY AND SUCHPERSON SHALL
NOTACTASAPROXYFORANY OTHERPERSONORSHAREHOLDER.

An explanatory statement pursuantto Section 102 of the CompaniesAct, 2013, relating to the Special Businessto be
transacted atthe meetingis annexed thereto.

Members are requested to bring their ClientID and DP ID or Folio Numbers, as may be applicable, for easy identification
ofattendance atthe meeting.

Corporate Membersintending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send a
certified copy of Board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.
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5.  TheRegisterof Membersand Share Transfer Books ofthe Company shallremain closed during the Book Closure period,
i.e.,from 23rd September, 2020to 30th September, 2020, both days inclusive in accordance with the provisions of
Section 91 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 for the purpose of the meeting.

6. Asameasure of economy and asteptoward greeninitiative, Members are requested to bring copy of Annual Report/
Notice tothe meeting.

7.  Memberswho have notalready submitted their PermanentAccount Number (PAN) & Email Id's, are requested to submit
thesame.

8.  Alldocumentsreferredinthe accompanying Notice and Statutory records etc. are open for inspection at the Office of
the Company during office hours on allworking days, up to and inclusive of the date of the Annual General Meeting.

9.  Pursuanttothe provisions ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder, the Company may send
notice of general meeting, directors'report, auditors' report, audited financial statements and other documents through
electronicmode. Further, pursuantto the first proviso to the Rule 18 ofthe Companies (Managementand Administration)
Rule, 2014,the Company shall provide an advance opportunity atleastonce in afinancial year tothe memberstoregister
their e-mail address and changes therein. In view of the same, Members are requested to kindly update their e-mail
address with depository participants in case of holding shares in demat form. If holding shares in physical form,
Members are requested toinform their e-mail ID to the Company.

10. Electronic copy ofthe Notice of the Annual General Meeting ofthe Company inter-aliaindicating the process and manner
of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form s being sentto allthe members whose email IDs are registered
with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested fora
hard copy of the same. For members who have notregistered their email address, physical copies of the aforesaid
documents are being sentby the permitted mode.

11. TheRegisters maintained pursuantto provisions of Sections 170 and 189 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder will be made available forinspection by Members of the Company at the Meeting.

12. PROFILE OF DIRECTORS SEEKING REAPPOINTMENT AT THE ENSUING 36th AGM (Refer ltem NO. 2, 4 & 5 of
the Notice for AGM)

Name of the Director RATTAN SINGHANIA LALIT KUMAR NEETAGOEL
DN 147685 00059732 07158388
Date of Birth 01-07-1949 12-01-1952 24-12-1974
Date of Appointment 01-04-2021 30-09-2020 01-04-2020
Profile/ Expertise in Specific AFellowMemberof Thelnstitute | A Fellow Member of The | Graduate
functional Areas of Qhartt_ared Accountants gf Institute of Chartered | from Delhi
Indiahavingvastknowledgein | Accountants of India | University
financial and company law having vast knowledge in
matte_rs. Mo_re than twodecades | financialand company law
experience in Capital Markets. matters
Qualifications B.Com, FCA B.Com, FCA B.Com
List of directorship in other
Public Companies.
(Ason3l1stMarch2020) | ----- NIL----- ] - NIL----- | - NIL-----
Shares held by the Director 158394 Equity Shares 501 Equity Shares 3250
Relationship with other Director(s) | NONE NONE NONE
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@

(i)

(iii
(iv)
v)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

13. Voting through electronic means:

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide its members the facility to exercise their right to vote at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

The voting period begins on 24th September, 2020 at 11.00A.M. and ends on 29th September, 2020 at5.00 P.M..
Duringthis period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form orin dematerialized form,
as on the cut-off date (record date) of 22nd September 2020 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereatfter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.
The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
Clickon Shareholders.
Now Enteryour User D

a. For CDSL.: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. ForNSDL.: 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digits Client D,

C. Members holding sharesin Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered withthe Company.
Nextenterthe Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

Ifyouare holding sharesindematform and had logged on towww.evotingindia.comand voted on an earlier voting
of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

Ifyou are afirsttime user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enteryour 10digitalpha-numeric PANissued by Income Tax Department (applicable for both demat

shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

M Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are

requestedto use the firsttwo letters of theirname and the last 8 digits of the demat account/folio
numberinthe Panfield.

M Incase the folionumberislessthan 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0's before the number
afterthefirsttwo characters ofthe name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. Ifyour name is Ramesh Kumar
with sequence number 1 thenenter RAOO0O00001 inthe Panfield.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat

ga”k_l OR account or in the company records in order to login.
DZEZ' éf Birth o Ifboth the details are notrecorded with the depository or company please enter the member

(DOB) id/folionumberinthe Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

(x)
(*)

(i)

After entering these details appropriately, clickon"SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form willthen directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menuwherein they are required
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also
used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. Itis strongly recommended notto share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained inthis Notice.
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(xii) Clickonthe EVSN (200831048) for the relevant <Capital Finvest Limited>onwhich you choose tovote.

(xiii) Onthevoting page, youwillsee "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION"and againstthe same the option"YES/NO" for
voting. Selectthe option YES or NO asdesired. The option YES impliesthatyou assentto the Resolutionand option
NOimpliesthatyoudissenttothe Resolution.

(xiv) Clickonthe"RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK"ifyouwishto view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) Afterselectingthe resolutionyou have decidedtovote on, clickon"SUBMIT". Aconfirmation box will be displayed.
Ifyouwishto confirmyour vote, clickon"OK", else to change your vote, clickon"CANCEL" and accordingly modify
yourvote.

(xvi) Onceyou"CONFIRM"yourvote onthe resolution, youwill not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xvii) Youcanalsotake aprintofthe votes castby clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting page.

(xviii) Ifademataccountholder hasforgottenthe login password then Enterthe User ID and the image verification code
and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) Shareholders canalso casttheirvote using CDSL's mobile app "m-Voting". The m-Voting app can be downloaded
fromrespective Store. Please followthe instructions as prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your
mobile.

PROCESSFORTHOSE SHAREHOLDERSWHOSE EMAILADDRESSES ARENOT REGISTEREDWITHTHE
DEPOSITORIESFOROBTAINING LOGINCREDENTIALSFORE-VOTINGFORTHERESOLUTIONPROPOSED
INTHISNOTICE:

1 For Physical Shareholders - please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of Shareholder, scanned
copy ofthe share certificate (frontand back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN Card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by emailto Company/ RTAemailid.

2. For Demat Shareholders - Please provide Demataccount details (CDSL-16 digitbeneficiary ID orNSDL -16
digitDPID+ CLID), Name, Client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN Card), AADHAR (Self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Company/ RTAEmail
id.

(xx) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

M Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. otherthan Individuals, HUF, NRlI etc.) and Custodian are required tolog on
to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

M A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

M Afterreceiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password.
The Compliance Userwould be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

° Thelistofaccounts linkedin the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval
ofthe accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

L Ascanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of
the Custodian, ifany, should be uploaded in PDF formatin the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to sent the relevant Board Resolution /Authority Letter
etc. togetherwith attested specimen signature of the duly authorised signatory who are authorised to vote, to
the Scrutinizer and to the company atthe email address viz; capital89@yahoo.com ifthey have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same inthe CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(XX) Incase you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@-cdslindia.com
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Vi.

In case of members receiving the physical copy:
A. Pleasefollowall stepsfromsl. no. (i) to sl. no. (xvii) above to cast vote.
B. COMMONINSTRUCTION

E-voting shall notbe allowed beyond 5.00 p.m. on 29th September, 2020. During e-voting period, Members of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form orin dematerialized form, as on 22nd September, 2020 may cast
theirvote electronically. Once the vote on aresolution is cast by the members, the members shall not be allowed
tochangeitsubsequently.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportionto their shares in the paid up equity capital of the Company
asonthe cut-off date of 22nd September, 2020.

Ms. Richa Dhamija (Membership no. 9776) Company Secretary, has been appointed as ascrutinizerto scrutinize
the e-voting process in afairand transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding 2 working days from the conclusion of e-voting period unblock
the votesin presence of atleast two withesses notin the employment of the Company and make a scrutinizers
report of the votes castin favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

In case of Members who are entitled to vote but have not exercised their right to vote by electronic means, the
Chairman may offer an opportunity to such members to vote at the meeting for all business specified in the
accompanying notice. For abundant clarity, please note that the Members who have exercised their right to vote
by electronic means shall notvote atthe meeting. The voting right of the Members shall be in proportionto their
shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. Ifa Member casts votes by both modes, then voting
donethrough e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as invalid.

Theresults shallbe declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The resolution will be deemedto be passed on
the AGM date subjectto receipt of the requisite Number of votes in favour of the resolutions. The results declared
along with the scrutinizers report shall be placed on the Company's Notice Board and on the website of CDSL
within 2 days of passing of resolutions atthe AGM of the Company and communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

14. Membersdesirousof asking any questions atthe Annual General Meeting are requestedto sendintheir questionssoas
toreachthe Company atleast 10 days before the Annual General Meeting, so that the same can be suitably replied.

15. Itmaybe notedthatall COVID-19 norms like thermal screening, physical distancing, masks and use of stanitizers will be
observed by alland arrangements in this respect will be made by the company.

By order of the Board of Directors
For CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

Dated: : 03-09-2020 RATTAN SINGHANIA
Place : New Delhi Whole Time Director

DIN No. 00147685
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENTPURSUANT TO THEPROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THECOMPANIES ACT, 2013

ltemNo.4:REAPPOINTMENT OF NON EXECUTIVEINDEPENDENTWOMANDIRECTOR

As perthe provisions of Section 149(1) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Company
Should have atleast one Woman Director on the Board of the Company. Accordingly, pursuantto the Articles of Association
ofthe Company and Section 161 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013. The Board of Directors has appointed Smt. Neeta Goel (DIN
07158388) as an Independent (Non-Executive) Director of the Company whose term of office expires at the ensuing 36th
Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors after consideration has recommended to reappoint Smt Neeta Goel (DIN: 07158388) as an Independent
Non-Executive Director within the meaning of Section 149 and 152 (including Section 149(10) ofthe new CompaniesAct, 2013
read with the Schedule IV attached thereto and Rules made under, with effect from the conclusion of thisAnnual General
Meetingtill the conclusion of the 40th Annual General Meeting not subjectto retirement by rotation.

The Company has received notice inwriting under the provisions of Section 160 of the CompaniesAct, 2013, fromamember
alongwithadepositof Rs. 1,00,000/- proposing the candidature of Smt. Neeta Goel for the office of Independent Director, to
be reappointed as such under the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013. The notice received under section
160(2) is available forinspection during normal business hours on any working day of the Company.

The Company hasreceived from Smt. Neeta Goel consentinwriting to act as adirector in From DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, (i) intimationin Form Dir-8interms of Companies (Appointment
& Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, and (iii) adeclaration to the effect that she meets the criteria ofindependence as provided in sub-section
(6) of Section 149 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Inthe opinion ofthe Board of Directors, Smt. Neeta Goel (DIN 07158388), the Independent Director proposed to be reappointed,
fulfils the conditions specified in the Actand the Rules made thereunder and he isindependent of the Management. The Board
considers that her association would be immense benefitto the Company and itis desirable to continue to avail her services
asanIndependentDirector.

The said Independent Director is not related to any of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (including relatives of
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel) ofthe Company interms of Section 2(77) of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company (including relatives of directors or Key Managerial
Personnel) otherthan the respective Non-Executive Independent Director herselfis concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, Inthis resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution setforth in Item No 4 for the approval of the members and needs to be passed being
unavoidable.

ItemNo0.5:

The Remuneration committee and the Board of Directors of the Company in their Virtual Zoom meeting held on 20th April 2020,
subjecttothe approval of the Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, recommended to reappoint Shri Rattan
Singhaniaas aWhole Time Director of the Company for afurther period of three years commencing from 1stApril 2021 to 31st
March 2024 onterms and conditions, as setoutin the Notice of thisAnnual General Meeting.

Shri Rattan Singhania is to be re-appointed for a further period of 3 (three) years i.e. for a further period of three years
commencing from 1stApril 2021 to 31st March 2024 as Whole Time Director of the Company and he shall devote whole of his
time and attention to his services as Whole Time Director of the Company and shall under the superintendence, control and
direction of the Board, perform duties and exercise the powers as may be entrusted to or confer upon by the Board. His brief
resume has beengivenin para 12 of Notes of Annual General Meeting Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution setforth in Item No 5 for the approval of the members and needs to be passed being
unavoidable.




CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

STATEMENTPURSUANT TO CLAUSE (iv) OF SECOND PROVISOT O SUBPARAGRAPHOF SECTION11OFPARTIIOF
SCHEDULEVTOTHECOMPANIES ACT, 2013

| General Information

Nature of Industry Trading, Investment s & NBFC activities

Date of expected date of commencementof commercial 20.09.1983

production

Financial Performance based on givenindicators inLakhs
Financial Parameters 2019-20( 2018-19 | 2017-18
Revenuefromoperations| 29.85 39.93 41.65
ProfitAfter Tax -7.27 3.37 8.08
Amountof Dividend Paid - - -
Rate of Dividend - - -

Foreigninvestments or collaborations, if any. Noforeign Investments or Collaborations have beenmade

Il | Information about the appointee:
Background details Furnished in Para 12 of Notes of Annual General Meeting
Pastremuneration Rs. 1,30,000/-

Recognition orawards -

Job profile and his suitability As Whole Time Director of the company he will be
responsible forthe management of the company, subject
tothe superintendence, guidance and control ofthe Board
of Directors of the Company. Taking into account his
previous experience, educational background, knowledge
aboutthe industry and the nature and size of operations of
the Company, heis afitand proper personto be appointed
asthe Whole Time Director ofthe Company.

Remuneration proposed Furnished inthe Resolution

Comparative remuneration profile with respect to The proposed remunerationis reasonable with respectto
industry, size of the company, profile of the position the industry, size of the Company and job profile of the
and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details proposed appointee.

would be with respect to the country of his origin)

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Shri Rattan Singhania is the Founder Promoter of the
company, or relationship with the managerial personnel, Company. Norelationship with the Managerial Personnel
ifany.

Ill | Other information : -

Reasons of loss orinadequate profits Nature of Business

Steps taken or proposed to be taken forimprovement Depends on Market conditions

Expected increase in productivity and profits in Unpredictable due to nature of business
measurable terms

IV | Disclosures:

The following disclosures shall be mentioned in the
Board of Director's Reportunderthe heading "Corporate
Governance", if any, attached to the financial
statement:-
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() all elements of remuneration package such as
salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension,
etc., ofallthe directors;

(i) detailsoffixed componentand performance linked
incentives along with the performance criteria;

(i) service contracts, notice period, severance fees:

(iv) stockoptiondetails, ifany, and whetherthe same
hasbeenissued atadiscountaswellasthe period
overwhichaccrued and overwhich excercisable.

No Remuneration to any other director

Fixed Remunerationonly

As PerResolution
-NIL-
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of CAPIT AL FINVEST LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 36th Annual Report together with the audited financial statements for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2020.

1 FINANCIAL RESULTS

PARTICULARS (Rs.in Lakhs) (Rs.in Lakhs)
2019-20 2018-19
Income 29.85 46.43
Expenses 34.95 33.74
Profit (before financial charges, depreciation and tax) -5.10 12.69
Net Finance Expense / (Income) NIL NIL
Depreciation and amortization Expenses 217 2.83
Profit before tax -7.27 9.85
Tax Expense / Written Back -.07 0.32
Net Profit for the year -7.34 10.18

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE & OUTLOOK

The total income for the financial year under review was 29.85 lakhs as against 46.43 lakhs for the previous financial
year. The loss before tax is 7.27 lakhs as against profit of 9.85 lakhs of last year. The financial results are thus
disappointing. Your company mainly operates in Capital Markets and Commaodities markets by way of arbitrage, trading
and investment activities on its own account. The markets remained full of volatility during the year. Unforeseen and
unpredictive events happened during the year under reference affecting the performance of the company. Then came
bombshell of Corona Virus viz. Covid-19. There is no directimpact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the financial statements
of the company. Indirectly it has created volatility in the capital markets where the company operates and the prices of
the stocks have come down automatically resulting into loss but it is not possible to attribute or assign a figure due to
the impact of pandemic but it did not affect the company as a going concern. The company is always on the lookout for
alternative avenues for business opportunities. The company is managing various risks by maintaining a conservative
financial profile and by following prudent business and risk management practices. Medium term to long term growth
prospects look grim in view of the global slowdown in the world economy mainly due to the impact of Covid-19.

3. DIVIDEND

As the year has ended into a Loss, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended 31st March,
2020.

4. TRANSFERTORESERVES
There was no transfer to any reserve as the year has ended into a loss.
5. CHANGE IN THENATURE OF BUSINESS
There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the Financial Year 2019-20.
6. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The Company did not have any Subsidiary Company or any joint ventures during the year under review.
7. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Considering its nature of activities, the following disclosures are made as per the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

12A.

a. The Company has no activities relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption.
b. There are noforeign exchange earnings or outgo during the period under review.
DEPOSIT FROM PUBLIC

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on
deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Your company has not made any loan or given any guarantees or made any investment under section 186 of the

CompaniesAct, 2013.

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(5) of the Act and based on the representations received from the

management, the directors hereby confirm that:

a. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2019-20 the applicable accounting standards have
beenfollowed and there are no material departures;

b. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
thatare reasonable and prudent so asto give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company atthe end
ofthe financial year and of the profit of the Company for the financial year;

c. they have taken Proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating properly.

f. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

There was no change in the Share Capital of the company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder, M/s SRDP & Co., Chartered

Accountants (FRN 509930C) were appointed as Auditors of the Company, for a term of 5(five) consecutive years at

the Annual General Meeting held on 26-09-2017. Their continuance of appointment is placed for ratification at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a certificate from the above Auditors to the effect that if
their appointment is ratified, it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDIT REPORT
The Statutory Auditors have submitted the Audit Report on the Financial Statements of the Company for the accounting

year ended 31st March 2020. The observations and comments given by Auditors in their Report read together with the
Notes to the Accounts are general in nature with no qualification and are self explanatory and require no comments.

COSTAUDITORS
In view of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,Cost Audit is not applicable to your company.
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the company has appointed Richa Dhamija & Company, a Company Secretary in
practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year 2019-20. The Secretarial Audit Report, as placed
by the Auditors is annexed with this Report as Annexure-I.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR'S REPORT
There are no disqualifications or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Auditors Report.
INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company has appointed M/s SPDG & Associates Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor of the Company for a
period of Five years till 31st March 2023. Their Report was placed before the Audit Committee of the Company from time
totime.

ANNUALRETURN

The extract of Annexure-1I of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as provided in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013,
has been posted on the Company's Website and the weblink is http://capfin.in/download/2020-2021/
2A CFL MGT9 2020.pdf

DIRECTORS

Allthe Directors have varied experience and specialized knowledge in various areas of relevance to the Company. The
Board consists of directors appointed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Shri Lalit Kumar, Director, retires by rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. The Board
recommends the same for your approval.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
Six meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held during the year.

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are as follows:

S.NO. Name of the Director Board Meetings
No. of Meetings held No.of Meetings attended
1. Shri Rattan Singhania 4 4
2. Shri Arun Kumar Garg 4 4
3. Shri Lalit Kumar 4 4
4. Smt. Neeta Goel 4 4

20.

21.

22.

23.

Meetings were held on 30-05-19, 14-08-19, 17-08-18, 12-11-19 and 11-02-2020.
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction of material nature as specified u/s 188
(1) of the Act with any of the related party except the remuneration paid to its Key Managerial Personnel of which
disclosures has been given in the notes to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant or material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts or Tribunals which would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

RISKMANAGEMENT

The Risk Management is overseen by the Audit Committee and Board of the Company on a continuous basis. The
Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimisation procedures and
periodical review to ensure that risk is controlled by means of a properly defined framework. In the Board's view,
there are no material risks, which may threaten the existence of the Company.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfil all the requirements as
stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be appointed as Independent
Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules.
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

3L

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Report Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is not applicable to the company as
the Paid up capital of the company is less than 10 crores and networth less than Rs. 25 crores.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes or commitments which may affect the financial position of the Company has occurred between
the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed by SEBI under
Clause 49 of the Equity Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its
performance, and that of its Committees and Individual Directors.

The performance of the Board, Wholetime director and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board seeking
inputs from the directors. The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from the
Committee Members. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual
director.

The Criteria for performance evaluation of the Board included aspects like Board composition and structure,
effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning transparency and disclosures etc.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The company has in place adequate internal financial control and procedures commensurate with its size, extent
and nature of its activities alongwith periodical review of operational effectiveness. All the transactions are properly
authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting
Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. This ensures orderly
and efficient conduct of its business and policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention of errors, accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

LISTING

The Equity shares of your company are listed at Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company has paid
listing fees to the said Stock Exchange for the year 2019-2020.

VIGIL MECHANISM

In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015, a
Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy has been established.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee consisting of Non executive independent directors viz. Shri Arun
Kumar Garg, Smt. Neeta Goel and Shri Lalit Kumar. There was no recommendation of the Audit Committee which was
not accepted by the board. Four meetings were held during the year attended by the aforesaid directors as under:

S.NO. Name of the Director No. of Meetings held No.of Meetings attended
1. Shri Arun Kumar Garg 4 4
2. Shri Lalit Kumar 4 4
3. Smt. Neeta Goel 4 4

Meetings were held on 30-05-19, 14-08-19, 12-11-19 and 11-02-2020.
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32.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of three non-executive Independent
directors viz. Shri Arun Kumar Garg, Smt. Neeta Goel and Shri Lalit Kumar. Two meetings were held during the year

attended by the aforesaid directors as under :

S.NO. Name of the Director No. of Meetings held No.of Meetings attended
1. Shri Arun Kumar Garg 1 1
2. Shri Lalit Kumar 1 1
3. Smt. Neeta Goel 1 1

33.

34.

35.

36.

Meetings were held on 30-04-2019.
POLICY ONDIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company has in place a Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees,
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the same is annexed hereto as Annexure Il1.

REMUNERATION RATIO OF THE DIRECTORS

The information required pursuant to Section 197 (12) read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed at Annexure-IV.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

Disclosures as required under Rules 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014.

0] statementshowing the details of the top 10 employees interms of remuneration drawn is attached asAnnexure
v

(i)  statementshowingthe details of employees employed throughoutthe financial yearandisinreceipt ofremuneration
ofRs. 1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore and Two Lacs only) or more, or employed for a part of the yearandin
receiptofRs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees Eight Lacs and Fifty Thousand only) or more amonth - NotApplicable as none
ofthe employee received in excess of the aforesaid limits.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

As at March 31, 2020 89.42% of equity shares of the Company have been dematerialised by shareholders through
National Securities Depository Limited & Central Depository Services Limited. The shareholders, who have not gone
for dematerialization of the shares till date, are requested to opt for dematerialization of the shares at the earliest.

Consequent to SEBI having amended Regulation 40 of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 with respect to mandatory
dematerialization for transfer of securities, members are advised to get their physical certificates dematerialised.
Physical certificates which are lodged for transfer will be mandatorily dematerialized with effect from 5th December
2018.

The Company has appointed M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., as Registrar for Share Transfer and Electronic
connectivity. Accordingly all the shareholders, Investors, Members of the Stock Exchanges, Depository Patrticipants
and all other concerned are requested to send all communication in respect of share transfer, demat/remat, change
of address etc. to our Registrar at below mentioned address :

M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.
(Unit: Capital Finvest Limited)

D-153A, IstFloor,

OkhlaIndustrial AreaPhase-|,

New Delhi-110020

TelephoneNo.: (011) 40450193-197
FaxNo.:(011) 26812682
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37.

38.

PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP OR TRANSACTIONS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to business associates for their support and contribution during the
year. The Directors would also like to thank the employees, shareholders and bankers for the continued support
given by them to the Company and their confidence reposed in the management.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED
RATTAN SINGHANIA
Whole Time Director
DIN : 00147685
CHAIRPERSON

PLACE : NEW DELHI
DATED : 03-09-2020
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ANNEXURE - |
Richa Dhamija and Company E-mail id : hricha.dhamija@gmail.com
Companies Secretaries Address : C-553, Sector-19, Noida - 201301
Mobile No. 9911792770
FormNo. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDITREPORT

For The Financial Year Ended 31stMarch, 2020

[Pursuantto section 204(1) ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 and Rule No. 9 ofthe Companies (Appointmentand Remuneration
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CAPITAL FINVESTLIMITED

1002 ARUNACHAL19BARAKHAMBA,
ROADNEWDELHI110001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Capital FinvestLimited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Auditwas conductedina
mannerthat provided us areasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
ouropinionthereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that inour opinion, the company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2020 (Audit Period) complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also thatthe Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanismin place tothe extent,
inthe manner and subjecttothe reporting made hereinafter:

We have examinedthe books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
forthe financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA") and the rules made there under;
(i)  The DepositoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign
DirectInvestment, Overseas Direct Investmentand External Commercial Borrowings; (No Fresh FDI, ODland ECBwas
taken by the Company during the Audit Period)

(v) TheRegulationsand Guidelines prescribed underthe Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 (‘'SEBIAct) viz.:-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011; (notapplicable during the review period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009; (Company did notissue any securitiesduring the Audit Period);

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (company has notgrantany option to its employee during the Audit Period)

(e) The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Company
did notissue any debt securities during the Audit Period)

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993regarding the CompaniesActand dealing with client;
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(vi)

(g)  The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 2009; (NotApplicable tothe
company during the period under review)

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (NotApplicable tothe
company during the period under review)

Otherlaws applicable tothe Company as per the representations made by the Management.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
0] Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i)  TheListingAgreements entered into by the Company with Metropolitan Stock Exchange Limited and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions ofthe Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subjectto the following:

Based ontheinformation received and records maintained, we further reportthat,

1 Pursuantto Section 203 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013, the Company has appointed Mrs. Prachi Goelas Company
Secretary ofthe Company on 1st February, 2020.

2. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors and the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

3. Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on
agendawere sentatleast sevendays in advance with the proper compliances of the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013. Some meetings were held on shorter notice with the proper compliances of applicable provisions of
CompaniesAct, 2013 and rules made there under.

4, Majority decisionis carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as partof the
minutes.

We furtherreportthat there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
And Inrespectof other laws specifically applicable to the Company, | have relied on information/records produced by the
Company during the course of my auditand the reportingis limited to that extent.

We further reportthat during the audit period, there were no instances of:

i. Public/Right/preferential/debentures/sweat equity, etc.

ii. Redemption/buy-back of securities

il Any approvaltaken from members in pursuance to section 180 of the CompaniesAct, 2013

iv. Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction, etc.

V. Foreigntechnical collaborations

This Reportis to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 1 and forms an integral part of this
report.

For Richa Dhamija & Company
(Practising Company Secretaries)
SD/-
Richa Dhamija
(Proprietor)
FCS 9776
COP 12099

Date: 14.07.2020
Place: Delhi
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To,

The Members,

CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

1002 ARUNACHAL19 BARAKHAMBA,
ROAD NEW DELHI 110001

Sub: Secret arial Audit for the Financial Year ended March, 2020 of even date is to be read with this letter
1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion onthese secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed
provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

We have notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance ofthe provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Richa Dhamija & Company
(Practising Company Secretaries)

Richa Dhamija
(Proprietor)
FCS 9776
COP 12099

Date: 14.07.2020
Place: Delhi
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ANNEXURE- Il
REMUNERATION POLICY
Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and this remuneration
policy, the provisions of law shall prevail and the company shall abide by the applicable law.

This policy has been framed keeping in view the nature of its activities, size, resources and its capacity to pay.
Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:
Remuneration for Independent Directors

» IndependentDirectors are to be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which
they may be members). Quantum of sitting fees may be subjectto review ona periodic basis, as required. Inadditionto
the sitting fees, they are also eligible for out of pocket expenses incurred for attending the Board Meetings and
Committees ofthe Board.

»  Overallremuneration (sitting fees) should be fair and reasonable keeping in view the nature and size of the company's
activities.

Remuneration for Managing Director (MD) / Whole Time Director / KMP/ Rest of the employees

The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to engage and retain suitable individuals. Hence remuneration
should be based on:

»  Qualification, experience and suitability to the company,
»  Marketcompetitiveness,

»  Drivenbytherole played by the individual,

>

Reflective of size of the Company, complexity of the sector / industry / company's operations and the company's
capacity to pay.

\4

The remuneration mix forthe MD/EDs or Wholetime Director is as per the terms approved by the Board and Members.
Incase of any change, the same would require the approval of the Members.

Basic/fixed salary is provided to allemployees as per terms agreed with them.

» Inadditiontothe basic/ fixed salary, the company may provide employees with certain perquisites, allowances and
benefitswhere possible like leave encashment, bonus, reimbursement etc. and annualincrements.

»  Inadditiontothefixed salary and perquisites as provided, the company may provide MD/EDs or Wholetime director such
remuneration, calculated with reference to the net profits of the company in a particular financial year, as may be
determined by the Board, subjectto the overall ceiling stipulated in Section 197 of the Act.

Policy implementation

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board is responsible for approving
and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.
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ANNEXURE - IV

DETAILS OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013
READ WITH RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES

2014
i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial year;
Name of the Director Ratio to Median Remuneration
Rattan Singhania - Wholetime Director 14.44
ii)  Thepercent ageincreaseinremuneration of each Director , Chief Financial Officer , Chief Executive Officer ,
Company Secret ary or Manager , if any, in the financial year;
The percentage increase (a) Whole Time Director 8.33%
(b) Chief Financial Officer 8.57%
(c) Company Secretary NIL (i.e. last year paid partly)
iii)  The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year
The percentage increase inthe median remunerationwas 7.68.
iv)  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31st March 2020
The number of permanentemployees on the rolls of the company as on 31st March 2020 was Five.
v)  The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company
performance;
Theincreaseinremunerationisinthe line with the markettrends and represents Nominal annualincrements onlyand has
no correlation with company's performance.
vi)  Comparision of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the
company;
Particulars Amount in Rs.
Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during financial year 2019-2020 22,40,000/-
Revenue from Operations 29,85,000/-
Remuneration (as% of revenue) 75.04%
Remuneration (as% of PBT)* 0
vii) Variations in the market capit alization of the Comp any, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the

current financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the market
quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company came out with
the last public offer in case of listed companies, and in case of unlisted companies, the variation in the net
worth of the Company as at the close of the current financial year and previous financial year;

Earlier shares ofthe company were listed at the Delhi Stock Exchange which was lying closed for over adecade and
as such there was no trading in the shares of the company. Shares of the company were listed at the Metropolitan
Exchange of Indiaonly on 12-12-2014 and there has been notrading in the shares of the Company during the financial
yearended 31st March 2020, therefore, thereis noinformations or rates to be givenin this respect.

viil) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial Remuneration
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The average percentileincrease made in Salaries of employees other than managerial personnelin 2019-2020 was
around 10% whereas percentile increase inthe managerial remuneration for the year was less than 10% for the same
financial year.

ix) Comparison of each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the
Company
Particulars Mr. Rattan Ms. Alka Ms. Juhi Ms. Prachi
Singhania Sharma Mathur Goel
Remeneration 15,60,000/- 5,32,000/- 1,08,000/- 40,000/-
Revenue 29,85,000/- 29,85,000/- 29,85,000/- 29,85,000/-
Remuneration (as% of revenue) 52.26% 17.82% 3.62% 1.34%
Profit before tax (PBT) -7,27,000/- -7,27,000/- -7,27,000/- -7,27,000/-
Remuneration (as% of PBT)* 0 0 0 0
X)  the key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors;
There are no variable components of salary paid in 2019-20 linked with the performance of the Company for the said
managerial personnel.
xi)  the ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors
but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year,;
Thereis no such employee being paid higher than the highest paid director.
xii)  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the Financial Year ended 31st March 2020 is as per the
Remuneration Policy ofthe Company.
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CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

1

To the Members of CAPIT AL FINVEST LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

A.  Wehave audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Capital Finvest Limited ("the Company"),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
onthatdate, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referredto as "the Standalone Financial Statements").

B. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")in the manner
so required and give atrue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 ofthe Actread withthe Companies (IndianAccounting Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended, ("IndAS")
and otheraccounting principles generally acceptedin India, of the state of affairs of the Company as atMarch 31,
2020, the profitand total comprehensive income, changesin equity and its cash flows for the yearended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statementsin accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) ofthe Act (SAs). Ourresponsibilities under those Standards are further described inthe Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company inaccordance with the Code of Ethicsissued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)together
with the independence requirements that are relevantto our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Actand the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientand
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit ofthe
Standalone Financial Statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion onthese matters. We have determined thatthere is no matters to be describe in key audit matters.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

A.  TheCompany's Board of Directorsis responsible for the preparation of the other information. The otherinformation
comprises the informationincluded in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Reportincluding
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information to the extent applicable, but does notinclude the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's
reportthereon. Our opinion onthe standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do notexpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

B. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informationand,
indoing so, consider whether the otherinformation is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude thatthere is amaterial misstatement of this
otherinformation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin thisregard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

A.  TheCompany's Board of Directorsis responsible for the matters statedin section 134(5) ofthe Actwith respect
to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changesin equity and cash flows ofthe Company
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
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selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, thatwere
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statementsthat give atrue and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, managementis responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, mattersrelated to going concernand using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has norealistic alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

6.  Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
A.

Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboutwhether the Standalone Financial Statementsasawhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue an auditor's report thatincludes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detecta material misstatementwhenit exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken onthe basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughoutthe audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whetherdue
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain auditevidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatementresulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

iif) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

iv)  Conclude onthe appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may castsignificantdoubt onthe Company's ability to continue as agoing concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosuresinthe Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

V) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and eventsinamannerthatachieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually orin
aggregate, makes it probable thatthe economic decisions of areasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factorsin (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatementsin the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing ofthe auditand significantaudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control thatwe
identify during our audit.
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E We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirementsregarding independence, and to communicate with themall relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thoughtto bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

F Fromthe matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
mostsignificance inthe audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the
key auditmatters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure aboutthe matter orwhen, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thatamatter should notbe
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Il.  Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

A.  Wehave soughtand obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit

B. Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far asitappears
from our examination of those books.

C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profitand Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changesin Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account

D. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the IndAS specified under Section
133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

E Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2020 from being appointed as a
directorinterms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act.

F With respecttothe adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company andthe
operating effectiveness of such controls, referto our separate Reportin "Annexure A". Our reportexpresses
anunmodified opinion onthe adequacy and operating effectiveness ofthe Company's internalfinancial controls
over financial reporting.

G With respecttothe other mattersto be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) ofthe Act, asamended:

Inour opinion andto the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us, the remuneration
paid by the Companytoits directors during the year isin accordance with the provisions of section 197 ofthe Act.

H. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014, asamended in our opinion andto the bestof our informationand
accordingto the explanations givento us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impactits financial position.

ii) The Company did nothave any long-term contractsincluding derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

i)  Therewere noamounts whichwere requiredto be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Governmentinterms
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3and 4 of the
Ordertothe extentapplicable.

For SRDP & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRNo. 509930C

CA Pramod Kumar Agarwal

(Partner) Place: New Delhi

M. No.084059 Dated : 31st July 2020
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Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors Report
Pursuant to Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order 2016

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ('the Act’)

We have audited the internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED ("the Company") as
atMarch 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the yearended on
thatdate.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Managementis responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based onthe internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated inthe Guidence Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (:ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
interenal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
asrequired underthe CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'sinternal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our auditin accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the 'Guidance Note'") and the Standards onAuditing, issued by the ICAl and deemedto be prescribed under Section
143(10) ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013, tothe extentapplicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance aboutwhether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessedrisk. The procedures selected depend onthe auditors'judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe thatthe auditevidence we have obtained is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis of our audit opinion on the
Company'sinternalfinancial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposesin accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and proceduresthat (1) pertainto the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only inaccordance with authorizations of the
Managementand directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because ofthe inherentlimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper managementoverride of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and notbe detected. Also,
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projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subjectto the risk
thatthe internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changesin conditions, orthatthe
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate interenal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such interenal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2020,
based onthe internal control over financial reporting criteria establised by the Company considering the essential components

ofinternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SRDP & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRNo.509930C

CA Pramod Kumar Agarwal

(Partner) Place: New Delhi
M. No.084059 Dated : 31st July 2020
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Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors Report
Pursuant to Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2016

(i)

(ii)

(v)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(x)

(*)

(xi)

(xii)

(@) TheCompany hasmaintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
offixed assets on the basis of available information.

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals having regardto the size ofthe company and nature ofits business. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such physical verification.

(c) Asexplainedtous, there was noimmovable property held by the company.

As explainedto us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the
year. Inour opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the
nature ofits business. No material discrepancy was noticed.

The Company has notgranted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or
other parties coveredinthe register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly the provisions of clause 3(iii)
(a)to(C) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information ad explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and
security.

The company has notaccepted any depositfromthe public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of Section 73to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Actand the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

As informed to us, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, inrespect of the activities carried on by the company.

(@  Accordingtoinformationand explanations givento us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account,
and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According
tothe information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in
arrearsas atMarch 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months fromthe date on when they become payable.

(b) Accordingtotheinformationand explanations givento us, there are no dues of Income Tax, salestax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in
repaymentofdues of banks. The Company has nottaken any loan either fromfinancial institutions or fromthe government
and has notissued any debentures.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has notraised money by way of initial public offer or further public offerincluding debtinstruments and term
loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the order are not applicable to the company and hence not
commented upon.

Based uponthe audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, we report
that no fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, the
managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act.

In our opinion, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4(xii) of the order are not
applicabletothe Company.
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(xiii) Inouropinion, alltransactions withthe related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the CompaniesAct,
2013 andthe details have beendisclosedin the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) Baseduponthe audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has notmade any preferential allotment of private placement of shares or fully or partly converitible debentures
during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence notcommented upon.

(xv) Baseduponthe auditprocedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has notentered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xvi) The Companyisregistered under section 45-lAofthe Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934.

For SRDP & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRNo. 509930C

CA Pramod Kumar Agarwal

(Partner) Place: New Delhi
M. No.084059 Dated : 31st July 2020
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. As at As at As at
31-March-2020 31-March-2019 1-April-2018
ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 6 48.57 18.48 9.59
(b) Loans 7 60.61 60.88 110.79
(c) Investments 8 122.50 114.81 108.72
(d) Other financial assets 9 60.74 6.79 2.23
Total financial asset s (A) 292.42 200.96 231.33
(2) Non-financial assets
(a) Inventories 10 151.39 245.56 203.71
(b) Current tax assets (net) 0.54 0.58 0.00
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 0.50 0.29 0.00
(d) Tangible Assets 11(a) 5.77 7.71 9.27
(e) Intangibles assets 11(b) 0.00 0.20 0.86
Total non-financial asset s (B) 158.20 254.34 213.84
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 450.62 455.30 445.17
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-financial liabilities
(a) Provisions 12 3.17 0.50 0.55
Total non-financial liabilities 3.17 0.50 0.55
TOTAL LIABILITIES (C) 3.17 0.50 0.55
(2) EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 13(a) 200.00 200.00 200.00
(b) Other equity 13(b) 247.45 254.80 244.62
TOTAL EQUITY (D) 447.45 454.80 444.62
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (C+D) 450.62 455.30 445.17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR SRDP & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 509930C) RATTAN SINGHANIA ARUN KUMAR GARG
CA PRAMOD KUMAR AGARWAL Whole Time Director DIRECTOR
M.No. 084059 DIN : 00147685 DIN : 00161007
(PARTNER)

ALKA SHARMA PRACHI GOEL
PLACE : DELHI CFO COMPANY SECRETARY

DATED : 31st July 2020
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No.  For the year ended  For the year ended
31-March-2020 31-March-2019
Revenue from operations
Interestincome 14 (a) 5.43 5.78
Net gain after fair value changes 14 (b) 19.94 34.56
Dividend income 15 4.48 6.09
Total revenue from operations 29.85 46.43
Total income 29.85 46.43
EXPENSES
Employee benefits expenses 16 28.22 26.86
Other expenses 17 6.73 6.88
Depreciation and amortization expense 18 2.17 2.83
Total expenses 37.12 36.57
Profit before tax (7.27) 9.85
Tax expense:
Written off 0.28 0.00
Prior period tax adjustment 0.00 (0.02)
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) (0.21) (0.30)
Profit for the year after tax [A] (7.34) 10.18

Other Comprehensive Income

A) Item that will be reclassified to profit and loss
Equity Instrument through Other Comprehensive Income

B) Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Other Comprehensive Income - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (7.34) 10.18
Earnings per equity share (Rs.)

Basic earnings per share 19 (0.37) 0.51
Diluted earnings per share (0.37) 0.51

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR SRDP & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 509930C) RATTAN SINGHANIA ARUN KUMAR GARG
CA PRAMOD KUMAR AGARWAL Whole Time Director DIRECTOR
M.No. 084059 DIN : 00147685 DIN : 00161007
(PARTNER)

ALKA SHARMA PRACHI GOEL
PLACE : DELHI CFO COMPANY SECRETARY

DATED : 31st July 2020
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

Equity share capital

Equity shares

Particulars Number of shares Amount
At 31 March 2018 2,000,000 200.00
Issue of share capital - -
At 31 March 2019 2,000,000 200.00
Issue of share capital - -
At 31 March 2020 2,000,000 200.00
Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Items of other Total
comprehensive income
Special |Securities Retained Acturial gain/ Equity
reserve | premium earnings (loss) on instruments
defined through
benefits other
obligations comprehensive
income
Balance at 31 March 2018 17.62 15.45 212.22 0.00 0.00 245.29
Investment through other
comprehensive item - - - 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit for the year - - 10.18 - - 10.18
Add : from retained earning - - - - - -
Less: Transfer to special
reserve - - 0.67 - - 0.67
Balance at 31 March 2019 17.62 15.45 221.73 - - 254.80
Investment through other
comprehensive item - - - - - -
Profit for the year - - (7.34) - - (7.34)
Less: Transfer to special
reserve - - - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2020 17.62 15.45 214.38 0.00 0.00 247.45
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31-March-2020 31-March-2019

Cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

Profit /(loss) before tax (7.27) 9.85

Adjustment for:

Depreciation 2.17 2.83

Net (gain)/loss arising on investments mandatorily
measured at Fair value through profit and loss - -

Provision made 2.67 -
Movement in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables and

other financial assets - (4.57)
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories 94.17 (41.84)
(Increase)/decrease in loans 0.27 49.91
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (53.92) (0.58)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities - (0.04)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 38.09 15.57
Income tax paid 0.00 0.02
Cash generated from/(used in) operations [A] 38.09 15.59
Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities

Proceeds from sale of investments (net) (7.69) (6.09)
Payment for acquisition of Property, plant and equipments

including capital advances (0.31) (0.61)
Cash generated from/(used in) investing activities [B] (8.00) (6.70)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B] 30.09 8.88
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18.48 9.60
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 48.57 18.48

Net Change (+) Increase / (-) Decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents [A+B] 30.09 8.88

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR SRDP & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 509930C) RATTAN SINGHANIA ARUN KUMAR GARG
CA PRAMOD KUMAR AGARWAL Whole Time Director DIRECTOR
M.No. 084059 DIN : 00147685 DIN : 00161007
(PARTNER)
ALKA SHARMA PRACHI GOEL
PLACE : DELHI CFO COMPANY SECRETARY

DATED : 31st July 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

@)

@)

(©)

4)

®)

(6)

1 Corporate information

The companyis mainly dealingin stocks, securities and commodities and also sometime givesinter corporate loansand
advances. The Company does not have any subsidiary or holding company.

2 Significantaccounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS") notified under section 133 ofthe CompaniesAct 2013 (“the Act"), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 asamended under the CompaniesAct 2013 and under the historical costconventiononthe
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, and on the basis of
accounting principle of a going concern in accordance with generally accepted accounting principal (GAAP).
Accounting policies have been consistently applied exceptwhere anewly issued accounting standard s initially
adopted orarevision to an existing accounting standard requires achange inthe accounting policy hithertoinuse.
Thefinancial statements are presented in Lakhs or decimal thereof unless otherwise specified.

Revenue from operations
Interest Income

a) UnderIndAS 109, Interestincome is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as
measured atfair value through Profitandloss (FVTPL).

Dividend Income

Dividendincome isrecognised whenitis actually received
a. Whenthe righttoreceive the paymentis established.
b. itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and
C. the amount ofthe dividend can be measured reliably

Taxes

Current tax

Currenttax assets and liabilities are measured atthe amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based ontax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheetdate.

Currentincome taxes are recognized in profit or loss exceptto the extent that the tax relates to items recognized
outside profitorloss, eitherin other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
position taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjected to
interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferredtaxis recognised ontemporary differences betweenthe carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiesinthe
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Property , plant and equipment

Property, plantand equipement are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated depreciation and impairmentloss, ifany. Such costincludes purchase price, borrowing costs, and
any costdirectly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on
foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Depreciation

Depreciationis calculated as per the estimated useful life of assets prescribed by the Schedule I tothe Companies
Act2013.




CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

@)

®)

9
(10)

Derecognition of assets

Anitem of property plant & equipmentand any significant partinitially recognisedis derecognised upon disposal
orwhen nofuture economic benefits are expected fromits use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
ofthe assetisincludedintheincome statementwhenthe assetis derecognised.

Trade Investments are the investments made to enhance the Company's business interests. All otherinvestments
otherthantrade investments are either classified as current orlong-term, based on Management'sintention atthe
time ofpurchase. Currentinvestmentsare valued atlower of costor Net Realised Value / Market Value Categorywise.
Longterminvestments are valued at costless permanentdiminution, if any, of each investment.

Intangible assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortisation
and“‘impairmentloss, ifany. The costcomprises purchase price, borrowing costs, and any costdirectly attributable
tobringing the assettoits working condition for the intended use and netcharges on foreign exchange contracts
and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

Derecognition of assets

Anitem ofintangible assetand any significant partinitially recognizedis derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected fromits use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
assetisincludedinthe income statementwhenthe assetis derecognized.

Contingent Liablilities, ifany are not provided for inthe accounts and are shown separately in Notes on Accounts.

Under the previous Gaap, non-current investments were stated at cost or NRV whichever is lower where
applicable, provision was made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in valuation of such investments.
Under IndAS, equity instrument [other thaninvestmentin subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates] have been
classified as Fair Value through Profit/Loss(Retained Earnings) through anirrevocable election at the date of
transition. Further, under previous GAAP, joint ventures were consolidated using ‘proportionate
consolidation’method. Under IndAS, joint ventures have been accounted using ‘equity method’

3 Accounting Policies not specifically referred to or otherwise are consistentand in consonance with generally accepted
accounting principles keeinginview IND-AS.

4 The Financial Statements have been prepared as per schedule l11; Division Il of the Companies Act 2013 following
Companies (IndianAccounting Standard) Rules 2015 on NBFC. The company has adopted IndianAccounting Standards
(IND-AS) with effect from 1stApril 2019 and effective date of such transitionis 1stApril 2018. The results have been
prepared inaccordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rule, 2015 (INd As) prescribed under section
133 ofthe ComaniesAct 2013 and other recognised accounting practices and policies to the extent applicable.

5 Information required pursuantto Schedule Il Division Il of the Companies Act 2013 and IND-AS have been givento the
extentapplicable to the activities of the company.

6  Cash and cash equivalents

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at Asat 8
31-March-2020 31-March-2019 1-April-2018
Cashonhand 0.45 0.57 0.34
Balances with banks (CurrentAccounts) 48.12 17.91 9.25
Total 48.57 18.48 9.59
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Loans (at amortised cost)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at As at
31-March-2020 31-March-2019 1-April-2018

(A) Loans
Unsecured 60.61 60.88 110.79
Total (A)-Gross 60.61 60.88 110.79
Less: Impairment loss allowance 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (A)-Net 60.61 60.88 110.79

(B) Others
Total (B) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (A) +(B) 60.61 60.88 110.79

Investment s (At Fair V alue)

Investment in Equity Sharesdesignated at Fair V

alue through Comprehensive Income

Particulars Asat31-March-2020
Atfair value Total
(1) Equity instruments
i) Quoted
a) 4800 Equity Shares of Hindustan Unilever
Limited* 110.33 110.33
b) 3000 Equity Shares of Oswal Chemicals and
Fertilisers Limited* 0.23 0.23
ii) Unquoted
a) 3900 Equity Shares of Key Estates Private Limited
@ INR 100/- per share 5.56 5.56
b) 3850 Equity Shares of Redecon Properties Private
Limited @ INR 100/- per share 6.38 6.38
Total — Gross (A) 122.50 122.50
(i) Investmentsoutside India - -
(i) Investmentsin India 122.50 122.50
Total (B) 122.50 122.50
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C)
Total—NetD=(A)-(C) 122.50 122.50
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Investment s (At Fair V alue)
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31-March-2019
At fair value Total
(1) Equity instruments
i) Quoted
a) 6000 Equity Shares of Hindustan Unilever Limited* 102.40 102.40
b) 3000 Equity Shares of Oswal Chemicals and Fertilisers Limited* 0.47 0.47
i) Unquoted
a) 3900 Equity Shares of Key Estates Private Limited
@ INR 100/- per share 5.56 5.56
b) 3850 Equity Shares of Redecon Properties Private Limited
@ INR 100/- per share 6.38 6.38
Total — Gross (A) 114.81 114.82
(i) Investmentsoutside India - -
(i) Investmentsin India 114.81 114.82
Total (B) 114.81 114.82
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C)
Total—Net D= (A)-(C) 114.81 114.82
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31-March-2018
At fair value Total
(1) Equity instruments
i) Quoted
a) 7200 Equity Shares of Hindustan Unilever Limited* 96.00 96.00
b) 3000 Equity Shares of Oswal Chemicalsand
Fertilisers Limited* 0.78 0.78
i) Unquoted
a) 3900 Equity Shares of Key Estates Private Limited
@ INR 100/- per share 5.55 5.55
b) 3850 Equity Shares of Redecon Properties Private Limited
@ INR 100/- per share 6.39 6.39
Total — Gross (A) 108.72 108.72
0.00 0.00
(i) Investments outside India 0.00 0.00
(i) Investments in India 108.72 108.72
Total (B) 108.72 108.72
Total (A) tot ally with (B)
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C)
Total—Net D= (A)-(C) 108.72 108.72
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Other financial assets

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at Asat 8
31-March-2020 31-March-2019 1-April-2018

Interestaccrued butnotdue on Investments/
stock of securities _ _ _
Tradereceivables 60.74 6.79 2.23
Total 60.74 6.79 2.23
Inventories

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at Asat 8

31-March-2020 31-March-2019 1-April-2018
Stockintrade 151.39 245.56 203.71
151.39 245.56 203.71

(@) Tangible asset s

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Car Computer Total

& Software

Cost
AsatMarch 31,2018 16.48 1.64 18.12
Additions 0.00 0.61 0.61
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00
AsatMarch 31,2019 16.48 2.25 18.73
Additions 0.00 0.31 0.31
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00
AsatMarch 31,2020 16.48 2.56 19.04
Accumulative Depreciation:
AsatMarch 31,2018 7.31 154 8.85
Additions 1.96 021 2.17
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00
AsatMarch 31,2019 9.27 1.75 11.02
Additions 1.96 021 217
Disposals 0.00 0.08 0.08
AsatMarch 31,2020 11.23 2.04 13.27
Netbook value:
AsatMarch 31,2019 7.21 0.50 7.71
AsatMarch 31,2020 5.25 0.52 5.77
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Intangible assets

Particulars MCX-Listing
Cost

AsatMarch 31,2018 3.99
Additions 0.00
Disposals 0.00
AsatMarch 31,2019 3.99
Additions 0.00
Disposals 0.00
AsatMarch 31,2020 3.99
Accumulative amortisation:

AsatMarch 31,2018 3.13
Additions 0.66
Disposals 0.00
AsatMarch 31,2019 3.79
Additions 0.00
Disposals 0.20
AsatMarch 31,2020 3.99
Net book value:

AsatMarch 31,2019 0.20
As atMarch 31,2020 0.00
Provisions:

Rs.inLakhs
Particulars As at As at
31stMarch 2020 31stMarch 2019

Expense Payable 3.17 0.50
Others 0.00 0.00
Total 3.17 0.50
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Equity shares
Particulars As at As at As at
31-March-2020 31-March-2019 31-March-2018
Number Amount Number Amount Number | Amount
of shares (Rs.in | of shares (Rs.in | of shares (Rs.in
lakhs) lakhs) lakhs)
Authorized:
Equity sharesof Rs. 10 each 2,000,000 200.00 | 2,000,000 200.00 | 2,000,000 200.00
Preference shares of
Rs.100each
200.00 200.00 200.00
Issued, subscribed and
paid-up:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid up 2,000,000 200.00 | 2,000,000 200.00 | 2,000,000 200.00
Compulsorily Convertible
Preference shares of Rs.100
eachfully paidup
Total 200.00 200.00 200.00

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company on reporting date:

Name of the shareholder As at As at
31-March-2020 31-March-2019
Numbers | Percentage of Numbers | Percentage of
of shares shareholding of shares shareholding
Ashoka Industrials Resources Ltd. 390000 19.50 390000 19.50
Path Finders Private Limited 341200 17.06 341200 17.06
EssKay Mercantiles Limited 189500 9.48 204500 10.23
Svam Softwares Limited 140000 7.00 140000 7.00
Rattan Singhania 158394 7.92 158394 7.92
Saroj Singhania 145000 7.25 145000 7.25
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:
Particulars As at As at
31-March-2020 31-March-2019
Shares atthe beginning ofthe year 2,000,000 2,000,000
Shares at the end of the year 2,000,000 2,000,000




CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

14

(b) Other equity Rs.inLakhs
Particulars As at As at As at
31-March-2020 | 31-March-2019 |31-March-2018
Special reserve
Atthe beginning of the year 17.62 17.62 16.95
Closing balance of special reserve (A)* 17.62 17.62 16.95
Security Premium Account
Atthe beginning of the year 15.45 15.45 15.45
Closing balance of security premium account (B) 15.45 15.45 15.45
Retained earnings
Atthe beginning of the year 221.73 212.22 101.95
Add: Net profitfor the current year (7.34) 10.18 8.08
Add: Unrealised gain onaccount of Fair valuation change - - -103.79
Less: Expensesincurredinrelation to share capital 0.00 0.00 0.00
Add: Deferred tax on share issue expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less: Dividend paidon CCPS 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less: Dividend distribution tax paid 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less: Transfertoreserve 0.00 0.67 1.60
Closing balance of retained earnings 214.38 221.73 212.22
Total 247.45 254.80 244.62

*Special Reserve representsthe reserve created pursuantto the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934 ("the RBIAct"). In

terms of Section 45-1C ofthe RBIAct.

Interest income

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 March 2020 ended 31 March 2019
Onfinancial Interest income | Total Onfinancial | Interest income | Total
assets on securities assets on securities
measured at | classified at fair measured at | classified at fair
amortised value through amortised value through
cost profit or loss cost profit or loss
Interestincome 0.00 5.40 5.40 0.00 5.78 5.78
Other Interestincome 0.00 0.03 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 5.43 5.43 0.00 5.78 5.78
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Net gain/(loss) after fair value changes

Rs.inLakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31stMarch 2020 31stMarch 2019
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value (A)
-Stock of securities (11.98) 7.28
Total (A) (11.98) 7.28
Profit on sale of stock of securities (actual)
Net gain/(loss) on stock of securities due to
fair value change (B)
-Profit/ Loss on sale of long term investment (Net) 3.75 5.17
-Adjustmenton account of fair valuaton of investment 28.17 2211
Total (B) 31.92 27.28
Total (A+B) 19.94 34.56
Breakup of realised / unrealised gain/(loss)
Rs.inLakhs
Total sale proceeds frominvestment 24.23 21.17
Less :- Costofaquisition (0.38) (0.38)
Netgain 23.85 20.79
Less :-Adjustment on account of fair valuation
ofinvestmentalready recognisedinlastyear 20.10 15.62
Net current year realised gain 3.75 5.17
Unrealised fair value change 28.17 22.11
Total current year gain 31.92 27.28
Dividend Income Rs.inLakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31stMarch 2020 31stMarch 2019
Dividend Income from equity shares 4.48 6.09
Total 448 6.09
Employee benefits expenses Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31stMarch 2020 31stMarch 2019
Salariesandwages 12.34 12.14
Director's Remuneration 15.60 14.40
Staff welfare expenses 0.28 0.32
Total 28.22 26.86
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Other expenses Rsin Lakhs
Particulars 12.340 12.140
Society's Common Maintenance Charges 0.34 0.29
Printing and Statioonery 0.51 0.69
Communication Costs 0.52 0.45
Repairs and maintenance 1.50 1.65
Advertisementand publicity 0.28 0.20
Petty Office Expenses 0.29 0.18
Auditor's fees and expenses
-foraudit fees 0.18 0.18
-for tax audit fees 0.12 0.12
Annual Listing Fee 0.65 0.65
Legaland Professional charges 0.99 1.02
Annual Service Contracts 0.34 0.34
Communication Costs 0.24 0.27
Director's fees, allowances and expenses 0.12 0.18
Miscellaneous expenditure 0.65 0.66
Total 6.73 6.88

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses RsinLakhs

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 2.17 2.17
Amortisation ofintangible assets 0.00 0.66
Total 217 2.83
Earning per share (EPS)

Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 33 issued by

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31stMarch 2020 31stMarch 2019

Profitfor the year, as per Statement of Profit &

Loss (Rs. inLakhs) (7.34) 10.18

Weighted average number of equity shares for

the purposes of basic/diluted earnings per share (in Nos) 2000000 2000000

Basic Earning Pershare (Rs.) (0.37) 0.51

Diluted Earning Per share (Rs.) (0.37) 0.51
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26
27

28

29

30

31

32

33.

Details of Purchases & Sales
Particulars As on As on
31stMarch 2020 31stMarch 2019
Rs. Rs.
Opening Stock 24555735.09 20371468.69
Purchases 10144615.48 25486953.19
Sales 18363101.44 22030947.80
Closing Stock 15139554.32 24555735.09
Expenses in foreign currency incurred during the year (Royalty, Knowhow, Professional and Consultation Fee,
Interestand other) (Previous Year .... NIL) NIL
Remittanceinforeign currency during the year (Previous Year ....NIL) NIL
Earningsinforeign exchange duringthe year (Previous Year ....NIL) NIL
Taxdeducted atsource oninterest (Previous Year Rs. 57750/-) Rs. 54000/-
In the opinion of the Directors, Current Assets, loans and advances have the Value at which they are stated in the

Balance Sheet, ifrealised in the ordinary course of business.
The company did not owe any sumto any micro, smalland medium enterprises as on 31st March 2020.

Dividendsreceived consist of Rs. 3,03,830/- from stockintrade (Previous year Rs. 4,57,439) and Rs. 1,44,000/- from
Long Term Investments (Previous Year Rs.1,51,200).

Thebusiness activities ofthe company fallin one segment only; hence segmentreporting as perAS-108is notapplicable
and allthe activities beingin India, there is no separate reportable geographical segment.

Depriciation ontangible assets has been provided based on useful life prescribed in schedule Il of the CompaniesAct
2013. Usefullife of intangible assets has been taken as provided in Income Tax Rules.

Inventories have beenvalued atlower of cost or netrealisable value / market value categorywise as required under
ICDS.

Revenue from operations consist of trading income from securities, long term capital gains, dividends and interest
income.

No provision has been made for the shortfall, if any, in respect of the cost value and the market value of long term
investments as the Directors are of the opinion thatdiminution, ifany, in value is not permanent.

Firsttime adoption of INndAS

i.) IndAS 101 (First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards) provides a suitable starting point foraccounting
inaccordance with IndAS and is required to be mandatorily followed by first-time adopters. The Company has
prepared the opening Balance Sheetas per IndAS as of 1stApril, 2018 (the transition date) by:

a. recognising allassets and liabilities whose recognitionis required by IndAS,
b. notrecognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by INdAS

c. reclassifying items from previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) to Ind AS as required
underIndAS, and

d. applying IndAS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities
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i.)  Reconcillation of equity as reported under previous GAAP is summaried as follows :

Particulars asat01/04/2018 asat31/03/19 asat31/03/20
(date of transition) (end of last period [end of last period
presented under presented under
previous gaap) previous gaap)
Equity as reported under
previous GAAP attributable to
Hind UniLeverLtd. 2.28 80.00 81.92
Oswal Chemand Fert. Ltd. 0.71 0.78 0.47
Key Estates (P) Ltd. 0.78 5.55 5.56
Redecon Properties (P) Ltd. 1.16 6.39 6.38
TOTAL 4.92 92.72 94.33
Impactof measuring Investment
atfmvthrough OCI 103.79 2211 28.17
Hind UniLeverLtd. 96.00 102.40 110.33
Oswal Chemand Fert. Ltd. 0.78 0.47 0.23
Key Estates (P) Ltd. 5.55 5.56 5.56
Redecon Properties (P) Ltd. 6.39 6.38 6.38
TOTAL 108.72 114.81 122.50

No provision has been made for the shortfall, if any, in respect of the cost value and the market value of long term
investments asthe Directors are of the opinion thatdiminution, ifany, in value is not permanent.

Thereis nodirectimpactofthe COVID -19 pandemic onthe financial statements of the company. Indirectly ithas created
volitility in the capital markets where the company operates and the prices of the stocks have come down substaintially
resultingintoloss butitis not possible to attribute or assign afigure due to the impact of pandemic butitdid not affected
itasagoing concern.

Thereis notaxliability asthe year has endedintoloss.

Otherthan salaries,no other benefits were provided to employees.
Related party disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationship

Key Management personnel

Details of Key Managerial personnel are as under :

Name of key persons
Rattan Singhania Director-Whole Time
LalitkKumar Director
ArunKumar Garg Director
NeetaGoel Director
PrachiGoel Company Secretary
AlkaSharma ChiefFinancial Officer
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Related party transactions

relevantfinancial year:

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
i). Key Management Personnel Asat31lsMarch2020 |Asat31sMarch2019
Remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel
Remunerationto Rattan Singhania 15.60 14.40
RemunerationtoAlka Sharma 5.32 4.90
Remunerationto Juhi Mathur 1.08 2.16
Remunerationto PrachiGoel 0.40 0.00
Director Meeting Feeto LalitKumar 0.04 0.06
Director Meeting Fee toArun Kumar Garg 0.04 0.06
Director Meeting Feeto Neeta Goel 0.04 0.06

39  Previous year figures

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR SRDP & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 509930C )
CA PRAMOD KUMAR AGARWAL
M.No. 084059

(PARTNER)

PLACE : DELHI
DATED : 31st July 2020

RATTAN SINGHANIA
Whole Time Director
DIN : 00147685

ALKA SHARMA
CFO

Previousyearfigures have beenregrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conformto the requirements prescribed
under Division Il of Schedule IlItothe CompaniesAct, 2013

ARUN KUMAR GARG
DIRECTOR
DIN : 00161007

JUHI MATHUR
COMPANY SECRETARY
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Resolution |Resolutions Optional
No. refer note 3 below
Ordinary Business For Against
1 Adoption of Finanical Statements and the Reports of the Board of Directors

and Auditors thereon for the financial period ended on March 31, 2020
2. Re-appointment of Shri Lalit Kumar who retires by rotation
3. Ratification of Auditors

Special Business

4, Reappointment of Smt. Neeta Goel as Independent Director of the Company

5. Reappointment of Shri Rattan Singhania as Wholetime Director of the Company.
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